
https://waterloowi.sharepoint.com/sites/Fileshares/data/Common/AGENDAS_ MINUTES/2023/COUNCIL 1st & 3rd Thursday/2023-01-19 City Council/2023-01-
19CityCouncilAgenda.docx 
1/18/2023 1:06 PM 

                  

                          136 North Monroe Street  
Waterloo, WI  53594 

      Phone: (920) 478-3025 
      Fax: (920) 478-2021 

      www.waterloowi.us 
 CITY OF WATERLOO COUNCIL AGENDA 

COUNCIL CHAMBER OF THE MUNICIPAL BUILDING – 136 N. MONROE STREET 
Thursday, January 19, 2022 – 7:00 p.m. 

Participate Remotely Or In-Person 
Updated 1/18/2022 1:15 pm 

 

Join Zoom Meeting: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88413778758?pwd=MTlsN241SjFpRE5kemFFQ3JMT0ZQUT09 
Meeting ID 884 1377 8758 Passcode 080713 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

Pursuant to Section 19.84 Wisconsin Statutes, notice is hereby given to the public and news media, that a public meeting will be held to consider the 
following: 

 
1) CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL 

 
2) MEETING MINUTES APPROVAL: January 5, 2023 

 
3) CITIZEN INPUT / PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
4) OLD BUSINESS 

 
5) MEETING SUMMARIES (since last Council meeting) 

a) 01/10/2023 Joint Review Board 
b) 01/17/2023 CDA 
c) 01/19/2023 Finance, Insurance & Personnel Committee 

 
6) CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 

a) January Reports Of City Officials & Contract Service Providers 
i) Parks 
ii) Fire & Emergency Medical Services 
iii) Building Inspections 
iv) Public Works 
v) Police 
vi) Library Board 
vii) Water & Light Utility Commission 
viii) Watertown Humane Society 
ix) Cable  

 
7) RECOMMENDATIONS OF BOARDS, COMMITTEES AND COMMISSIONS 

a) Finance, Insurance & Personnel 
i) December 2022 Financial Statements: General Disbursements $176791.05; Payroll $140,953.71 & Clerk/Treasurer’s 

Reports [see on municipal website] 
b) Community Development Authority 

i) 2023-03 Resolution for a Community Development investment Vibrant Spaces Grant for the Veterans Memorial Park 
Project 

ii) Façade Grant 
 

8) NEW BUSINESS 
a) Garbage/Recycling rate increase 
b) Rental of Manuesha Business Center to the Waterloo Business Association 
c) DNR Recycling Compliance Assurance Plan  
d) Resolution 2023-02 Appointing Jeanne Ritter as Clerk /Deputy Treasurer  

 
9) FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
10) ADJOURNMENT 

 
Jeanne Ritter Clerk/Deputy Treasurer       Posted & Emailed: 01/16/2023.  
PLEASE NOTE: It is possible that members of and possibly a quorum of members of other governmental bodies of the municipality may be in attendance at the above meeting(s) to gather 

information. No action will be taken by any governmental body other than that specifically noticed. Also, upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled 

individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information or to request such services please contact the clerk’s office at the above location 

http://www.waterloowi.us/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88413778758?pwd=MTlsN241SjFpRE5kemFFQ3JMT0ZQUT09
https://www.waterloowi.us/clerk-treasurer/pages/monthly-financial-statements


Page 1 of 1  
https://waterloowi.sharepoint.com/sites/Fileshares/data/Common/AGENDAS_ MINUTES/2023/COUNCIL 1st & 3rd Thursday/2023-01-05 City Council/2023-01-
05CityCouncilMinutes.docx 
1/6/2023 2:09 PM 

CITY OF WATERLOO COMMON COUNCIL - MEETING MINUTES: January 5, 2023 
[a digital recording of this meeting also serves as the official record] 

 

1) CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & ROLL CALL. Mayor Quimby called the meeting to order at 7:03 
p.m. Alderpersons present: Cummings, A. Kuhl, C. Kuhl, Griffin, Thomas, Weihert and Petts. Attending Remotely: 
none Absent: none Others attending remotely or in-person: Utility Superintendent B. Sorenson; Police Chief D. 
Sorenson; DPW Director Yerges; Fire Chief Benisch; and Clerk Jeanne Ritter. The pledge of allegiance was 
recited. 

 
2) MEETING MINUTES APPROVAL: Open and Closed December 15, 2022 [C. Kuhl/Cummings] VOICE VOTE: Motion 

Carried.  
 

3) CITIZEN INPUT / PUBLIC COMMENT – none 
 

4) OLD BUSINESS – none 
 

5) MEETING SUMMARIES (since last Council meeting)  
a) 12/20/2022 CDA - cancelled 
b) 12/27/2022 Plan Commission - cancelled 
c) 12/27/2022 Library Board - cancelled 
d) 01/03/2023 Waterloo Water & Light Commission 
e) 01/05/2023 Public Safety & Health - cancelled 
f) 01/05/2023 Public Works & Property Committee 

 
6) RECOMMENDATIONS OF BOARDS, COMMITTEES AND COMMISSIONS 

a) FINANCE, INSURANCE AND PERSONNEL COMMITTEE 
i) Fire Department – Air Compressor Motion [Thomas/Weihert] To approve repairs of the compressor not to 

exceed $5000. To be paid from Fund balance. ROLL CALL: Ayes 7 Nays 0 Motion carried.   
    
7) NEW BUSINESS 

a) Proclamation Thanking Mike Lannoy for his years of service.  The Mayor thanked Mike Lannoy for his 11 
years of service on the Plan Commission.    

b) Winter On-street Parking Permit Applications - §350-7 (g) Demet denied due to lack of demonstrated need 
Motion [Weihert/A. Kuhl] VOICE VOTE: Motion carried.  Haseleu Approved 2 on-street parking permits 
Motion[C.Kuhl/Petts] VOICE VOTE:  Motion carried. 

c) 2023-01 Resolution Appointing Lana Nelson as Treasurer/Deputy Clerk Motion [Cummings/Griffin] VOICE 
VOTE: Motion carried.   
 

8) FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

9) ADJOURNMENT [ C. Kuhl/Petts] VOICE VOTE: Motion carried. 7:23 pm 
 
 
Attest: 
Jeanne Ritter Clerk/Deputy Treasurer 



Page 1 of 1 

HTTPS://WATERLOOWI.SHAREPOINT.COM/sites/fileshares/data/common/parks/2022/parks commision meetings/coordinator reports/12-07-2022 coordinator report.docx 

12/5/2022 1:01 PM 

 
 

                 
                          136 North Monroe Street  

Waterloo, WI  53594 
      Phone:  (920) 478-3025 

      Fax: (920) 478-2021 

      www.waterloowi.us 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

PARKS COORDINATOR REPORT 
October 2022 – December 2022 

 
EVENTS AND HIGHLIGHTS 

 WinterFest 
o Vendor Fair 

 Large Turnout – Vendors Full 
o Parade 

 Largest to date 
o Community Party 

 Lots of involvement and attendees 
 
ONGOING PROJECTS 

 BATHROOM RENOVATION 
o New Painting in Lower Bathrooms/Upper Mens Winter 2023 
o New Stalls in Lower Bathrooms Winter 2023 

 AC/HEAT UPDATES 
o Both Pavilion and WRT scheduled for Mid-October for new updates 

 Richter Heating was winning bid 
 
FINISHED PROJECTS 

 BATHROOM FLOORS – Both Outdoor bathrooms and Lower Pavilion Bathroom areas 
 
CAROUSEL 

 CAROUSEL WORKS (OHIO) 
o Change of date and coming in December 

 
PROJECTS FOR 2023 

 GATOR PURCHASE 

 CHAIR/TABLE PURCHASE 

 SCOREBOARD UPGRADES 

 LOWER PAVILION RENOVATION 
 
DONATION CAMPAIGNS 

 DOG PARK RENOVATION/RE-LOCATION 
 

GRANT OPPORTUNITIES 

 GWCHF – TRP Play Spaces ($62,500) 

http://www.waterloowi.us/










Invoice
Page: 1

Invoice Number: 0095161-IN

12/31/22Invoice Date:

Salesperson: 0000

Customer Number:

Customer P.O.:

11-WATERL2

Terms: Net 30 Days

CITY OF WATERLOO
136 N MONROE STREET
Waterloo, WI  53594-1198

01/30/23Due Date:

SB_42786

Fee Type Amount Paid Paid Date % Due to 3rd Party Amount Due to 3rd Party

506 East Madison Street, Waterloo, WI 53594 HVAC PermitPermit # 22WTRC-0145-22-12H

62.70HVAC- Replacement & Misc. Items- Residential 12/01/22104.50 60.00
62.7022WTRC-0145-22-12H Subtotal

750 South Monroe Street, Waterloo, WI 53594 DemolitionPermit # 22WTRC-0146-22-12B

1,007.55Razing Fee- Commercial 12/29/221,679.25 60.00
1,007.5522WTRC-0146-22-12B Subtotal

401 Hendricks Street, Waterloo, WI 53594 PR Only - Certified - BLDG - NPermit # 22WTRC-PR00001

225.00Building Plan Review Fees 12/12/22250.00 90.00
90.00Plan Entry Fee 12/12/22100.00 90.00

225.00Building Plan Review Fees 12/12/22250.00 90.00
225.00Building Plan Review Fees 12/12/22250.00 90.00
765.0022WTRC-PR00001  Subtotal

401 Hendricks Street, Waterloo, WI 53594 PR Only - Certified - HVAC - NPermit # 22WTRC-PR00002

135.00HVAC Plan Review Fees 12/12/22150.00 90.00
135.00HVAC Plan Review Fees 12/12/22150.00 90.00
135.00HVAC Plan Review Fees 12/12/22150.00 90.00
405.0022WTRC-PR00002 Subtotal

AmountDescriptionItemCode

Summary  Fee Type

Building Permits/PERMITS 1,070.25

Plan Review Services/PLAN REVIEW 1,170.00

2,240.25Total

SB_42786

Invoice Total: 2,240.25

Sales Tax: 0.00

Freight: 0.00

2,240.25Net Invoice:

Please remit to: SAFEbuilt LLC Lockbox #88135
PO Box 88135, Chicago, IL 60680-1135





































Karl Junginger Memorial Library / Mayor/Council/Board Report -DECEMBER 2022 

DECEMBER MONTHLY STATISTICS JAN FEB MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC 

Library Card Holders 2021 2468 2477 2496 2499 2482 2519 2533 2539 2561 2544 2464 2397

2022 2400 2410 2420 2432 2453 2485 2516 2537 2570 2583 2592 2581

% of Change -2.76% -2.70% -3.04% -2.68% -1.17% -1.35% -0.67% -0.08% 0.35% 1.53% 5.19% 7.68%

Checkouts (Circulation) 2021 3263 3312 3601 3425 3352 4483 4826 3764 3475 3499 3245 3194

2022 3920 3624 4192 3486 3361 4768 4306 4936 3780 3798 3707 3300

% of Change 20.13% 9.42% 16.41% 1.78% 0.27% 6.36% -10.77% 31.14% 8.78% 8.55% 14.24% 3.32%

eBook/Audio Checkouts 2021 593 607 585 536 562 498 573 665 591 655 568 627

(Circulation) 2022 663 711 705 669 633 639 663 701 643 648 718 657

% of Change 11.80% 17.13% 20.51% 24.81% 12.63% 28.31% 15.71% 5.41% 8.80% -1.07% 26.41% 4.78%

Library Visits 2021 1396 1259 1539 1125 747 1236 1799 1685 1491 850 1422 1497

2022 1462 1584 1820 1710 1627 1530 2118 2065 2138 1801 1633 1397

% of Change 4.73% 25.81% 18.26% 52.00% 117.80% 23.79% 17.73% 22.55% 43.39% 111.88% 14.84% -6.68%

Meeting Room Use 2021 1 0 6 5 8 9 3 6 7 2 10 8

2022 10 10 8 8 16 11 6 9 7 7 7 10

% of Change 900.00% 900.00% 33.33% 60.00% 44.44% 22.22% 100.00% 50.00% 0.00% 250.00% -30.00% 25.00%

Public Computer Use 2021 74 92 117 86 87 69 64 70 72 80 84 40

2022 60 73 74 61 57 73 72 91 64 51 57 55

% of Change -18.92% -20.65% -36.75% -29.07% -34.48% 5.80% 12.50% 30.00% -11.11% -36.25% -32.14% 37.50%

WiFi Use 2021 139 166 147 161 154 171 166 159 195 173 182 185

2022 174 189 206 210 216 254 217 217 271 214 185 179

% of Change 25.18% 13.86% 40.14% 30.43% 40.26% 48.54% 30.72% 36.48% 38.97% 23.70% 1.65% -3.24%

Outreach to local 2021 122 88 96 91 111 109 69 92 142 88 86 133

residents -Checkouts 2022 114 90 132 89 155 63 177 61 101 137 146 81

% of Change -6.56% 2.27% 37.50% -2.20% 39.64% -42.20% 156.52% -33.70% -28.87% 55.68% 69.77% -39.10%

PROGRAMS *2022 #'s will include In-Person and Passive programs

Adult  Number of Programs 2021 4 6 4 4 3 6 5 5 6 11 19 11

2022 21 19 18 18 17 14 14 11 7 21 21 16

% of Change 425.00% 216.67% 350.00% 350.00% 466.67% 133.33% 180.00% 120.00% 16.67% 90.91% 10.53% 45.45%

Adult Attendance 2021 46 44 34 25 28 130 35 77 28 112 107 51

2022 193 114 117 139 126 154 144 62 107 159 114 99

% of Change 319.57% 159.09% 244.12% 456.00% 350.00% 18.46% 311.43% -19.48% 282.14% 41.96% 6.54% 94.12%

Teen (12-18) 2021 1 1 1 1 1 8 10 0 1 1 1 1

Number of programs 2022 3 2 2 2 1 10 9 3 2 3 2 2

% of Change 200.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 25.00% -10.00% 100.00% 100.00% 200.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Attendance 2021 20 25 22 22 20 154 21 0 0 0 1 0

2022 39 25 36 24 24 90 91 48 25 29 30 24

% of Change 95.00% 0.00% 63.64% 9.09% 9.30% -41.56% 333.33% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 2900.00% 100.00%

Children's 2021 6 7 9 6 2 19 20 10 9 11 11 8

Number of programs 2022 17 30 16 6 14 29 25 17 11 21 14 10

% of Change 183.33% 328.57% 77.78% 0.00% 600.00% 52.63% 25.00% 70.00% 22.22% 90.91% 27.27% 25.00%

Attendance 2021 95 184 257 182 84 1133 973 348 58 112 105 73

2022 307 257 308 255 904 1457 1173 348 575 415 285 221

% of Change 223.16% 39.67% 19.84% 40.11% 976.19% 28.60% 20.55% 0.00% 891.38% 270.54% 171.43% 202.74%



List of Bills

Associated Trust Company 950.00 North Central Lab 1,124.97
APG of Southern Wisconsin 23.13 Payment Service Network 101.95
Border States 8,485.97 Pig 21.54
Bell Lumber & Pole Co 13,349.37 Payroll 60,440.87
BP Credit Card Center 1,097.27 Portland Sanitary District 8,281.13
Tom Bergan 70.00 PSC 136.75
Brooks Tractor 240.41 Resco 141.44
Vern Butzine 105.00 SEERA 1,325.39
City of Waterloo Treasurer 935,705.90 Richter Heating & AC 2,086.29
Charter Communications 244.96 Devin Schumann 105.00
Cutting Edge 375.00 Skaltizky Drainage LLC 406.00
Dunneisen Excavating LLC 441.00 Tatman Associates 32,942.00
Elster Solutions 26,208.00 Tim Thomas 105.00
Ehlers Pershing Advisor Solutions 84.02 The Courier 76.75
Environmental Express Inc 1,685.66 United Liquid Waste Recycling 968.56
F&M Bank 210.29 US Cellular 249.50
Forster Electric Engineering 1,235.00 Unifirst Corp 326.18
Frontier 412.42 UPS 109.67
GFC Leasing 99.00 Visa 1,763.00
Hawkins 1,830.98 Chuck Wallace 70.00
Howie's Hardware 693.02 Waterloo Building Center 56.64
Infosend 944.99 Waterloo Utilities 14,192.41
Irby 352.02 WE Energies 1,244.85
Jonas Office Products 120.35 Wisconsin Dept. of Revenue 11,329.75
K Press & Trends 150.00 Wisco Properties Waterloo 222.64
Karl Junginger Memorial Library 242.74 Wisconsin Rural Water Assn 480.00
Lou's Gloves 122.00 WPPI Energy 225,268.04
Madison Window Cleaning 683.00 Wolf Paving & Excavating 708.63
Midwest Meter Inc 3,704.80

Total Disbursements $1,364,151.25

Checking Account #102-613:
  Balance 11/30/22 $207,874.35
  Transfer 950,000.00
  Disbursements (1,138,487.31)
  Interest 14.42
  Service Charge (22.76)
  Balance 12/31/22 $19,378.70

WWTP Account #374-547 (DNR Replacement Fund)
  Balance 11/30/22 $552,157.65
  Deposit/ (Withdrawal)
  Interest 136.15
  Balance 12/31/22 $552,293.80

Debt Service Account #3015323:
  Balance 11/30/22 $68,684.21
  Deposit 58,650.00
  Bond Payment
  Interest 299.67
  Balance 12/31/22 $127,633.88

Money Market Account #110-832:
  Balance 11/30/22 590,640.25
  Deposits 1,096,238.55
  Transfer (508,650.00)
  Disbursements (225,268.04)
  Interest (289.48)
  Service Charge 281.32
  Balance 12/31/22 $952,952.60

Transportation Fund
  Balance 11/30/22 $95,052.99
  Transfer
  Balance 12/31/22 $95,052.99

Construction Account:
  Balance 11/30/22 500,000.00
  Transferred in/(out) (500,000.00)
  Balance 12/31/22

$0.00
WWTP Interim Financing:
  Balance 11/30/22 $359,343.59
  Transferred in $1,000,000.00
  Transferred out -$447,615.58
  Interest 841.81
  Service Charge (84.02)
  Balance 12/31/22 $912,485.80

Avestar CD #3596 (Bond Reserve):
  Balance 11/30/22 311,885.60
  Interest
  Balance 12/31/22 $311,885.60

CD #613386 (Bond Reserve):
  Balance 11/30/22 217,863.86
  Interest
  Balance 12/31/22 $217,863.86



Regular meeting of the Waterloo Water & Light Commission held January 3, 2023  
The meeting was called to order by President Tom Bergan at 7:00pm at the Waterloo Utilities 
office. Present were Commissioners Vern Butzine, Devin Schumann, Tim Thomas, Chuck Wallace, 
Superintendent Barry Sorenson, and Lineman Evan Pratt.   
 
Minutes 
It was moved by Schumann, seconded by Butzine, to approve the minutes of the December 6, 2022 
meeting.  Motion carried. 
 
Expenditures 
It was moved by Thomas, seconded by Wallace, to approve the payment of the December bills as 
presented.  Motion carried. 
 
Citizen Input 
None. 
 
WWTP hiring to replace future retirement 
It was moved by Thomas, seconded by Butzine, to approve hiring an WWTP operator.  Motion 
carried. (4-0-0 Bergan abstained) 
 
General Info 
Discussion on check signers. 
 
It was moved by Thomas, seconded by Butzine, to adjourn. Motion carried.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Tim Thomas 
Secretary 





https://waterloowi.sharepoint.com/sites/Fileshares/data/Common/RESOLUTIONS/2023 RESOLUTIONS/PROPOSED/2023-03/#2023-03 A RESOLUTION FOR A COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT INVESTMENT VIBRANT SPACES GRANT FOR THE VETERANS MEMORIAL PARK PROJECT.doc 

 

 

                                           

                          136 NORTH MONROE STREET, WATERLOO, WISCONSIN 53594-1198 
      Phone:  (920) 478-3025 
      Fax: (920) 478-2021   
      E-Mail:  cityhall@waterloowi.us  
     Website:  www.waterloowi.us 

 
 

 

______________________________________________________________________________              __ 

 
RESOLUTION #2023-03 

A RESOLUTION FOR A COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT INVESTMENT VIBRANT SPACES 
GRANT FOR THE VETERANS MEMORIAL PARK PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Waterloo is interested in creating an inviting and engaging community in order to attract and 
retain residents and employees for local businesses as described  in the application; and 
 
WHEREAS, financial aid is required to carry out the Veterans Memorial Project at 117 E Madison St; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Waterloo had budgeted a sum sufficient to complete the 
project and  
 
HEREBY AUTHORIZES the Clerk’s office to act on behalf of the City of Waterloo to: 
 
Submit an application to the Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation (WEDC) for any financial aid that may be 
available; 
 
Submit signed documents; and 
Take necessary action to undertake, direct and complete the approved project; 
 
Submit reimbursement claims along the necessary supporting documentation within the required timeframe; 
 
And Submit a final performance report by December 2024 including photos of the completed  Veterans Memorial Park 
at 117 E MADISON ST, and a narrative of project outcomes including utilization, programing, and impacts on the 
surrounding business district. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Waterloo will comply with state rules for the program; will maintain the 
completed project in an attractive, inviting and safe manner; and will keep the facilities open to the general public 
during reasonable hours consistent with the type of facility.  
 
I herby certify that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted by the Waterloo Common Council on  the day of January 
19th, 2023. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 19th  day of January 2023. 
 
      CITY OF WATERLOO 
 
 
      Signed: ________________________________ 
           Jenifer Quimby, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Jeanne Ritter, Clerk/Deputy Treasurer 

 
 
  

http://www.waterloowi.us/


HTTPS://WATERLOOWI.SHAREPOINT.COM/SITES/fileshares/data/common/agendas_ minutes/2023/cda-3rd tuesday/2023-01-17/facadetenantpackage.docx 
 Page 1 of 7  
1/18/2023 1:25 PM 
 

 

 

DOWNTOWN FACADE & COMMERCIAL INTERIOR BUILD-OUT  

GRANT PROGRAMS 

 

 

Revised/Updated March 8, 2017 

January 19, 2023 

 

SUMMARY 

This is a matching grant program for eligible property improvement projects.  Matching grants are available to fund 50% of eligible 

project costs up to $5,000 per project.  The minimum total project size to be considered for a matching grant is $1,000 (for a 

matching award of up to $500). 

 

 



HTTPS://WATERLOOWI.SHAREPOINT.COM/SITES/fileshares/data/common/agendas_ minutes/2023/cda-3rd tuesday/2023-01-17/facadetenantpackage.docx 
 Page 2 of 7  
1/18/2023 1:25 PM 
 

 

Downtown Facade & Commercial Interior Build-Out Grant Programs 

Eligible Applicants: Who Is Eligible? Property owners and current or prospective tenants located within Tax Increment 

District #2.  Awards may be made no more frequently than every 36 months to an applicant and or and address., with a 

lifetime grant cap of $15,000 from the program’s inception for each applicant. 

The Opportunity. This program offers a matching grant for eligible property improvement projects. Matching grants are 

available to fund 50% of eligible project costs up to $5,000 per application. The minimum total project size to be 

considered for a matching grant is $1,000 (for up to $500 match).  Total annual municipal award expenditures shall not 

exceed $25,000. 

How to Apply. Applicants are encouraged to discuss the project with City staff prior to submission.  Complete and 

return the application form to the Clerk/Treasurer’s office during regular business hours.  Applicants are encouraged to 

discuss the project with City staff prior to submission. 

The Program’s Future is Not Guaranteed.  The annual municipal budgeting process will determine the lifespan of 

these programs.  Future rounds of funding will be available on an annual basis as funds become available. 

Eligible Project Area. Parcels located inside the TIF #2 boundaries illustrated on the map. 

 

 

 



HTTPS://WATERLOOWI.SHAREPOINT.COM/SITES/fileshares/data/common/agendas_ minutes/2023/cda-3rd tuesday/2023-01-17/facadetenantpackage.docx 
 Page 3 of 7  
1/18/2023 1:25 PM 
 

General Program Guidelines: 

• Applicant must:Property owner or tenant must apply for funds to be used within the Tax Increment District # 2. 

• Applicant must Be located in a building which contributes to Waterloo’s property tax base. 

• Projects that have already begun construction or which were completed in the past are not eligible to apply for 

funds.  

• Applicant must Be current on all mortgage, tax and utility payments, and tenant applicants must be current in 

lease payments to the property owner. Prospective businesses interested in renting and opening in Waterloo 

are eligible to apply with approval from landlord and with a signed lease agreement in place (lease may be 

contingent upon project funding). 

• Property owners may apply for both façade and tenant improvement program funds under separate 

applications and a tenant may apply for improvement funds even if the landlord has also applied for 

façade improvements. Each project will be judged on its own merits and no preference or penalty will be 

given for multiple projects. 

• Eligible project costs include both hard costs (construction) as well as soft costs (design and 

engineering). However, the majority of total project cost should be hard costs. 

• Preference will be given to projects which will leverage the most private investment for each dollar of 

public funds and provide the greatest public benefit. 

• Work must be completed according to the approved plan within 120 days of approval of the grant unless a 

specific exemption is granted. Any changes to the work plan must be approved by the City in advance. Failure 

to do so may result forfeiture of grant money. 

• Once the project is complete, applicant will notify the City, which will review final work to ensure that the 

results are comparable to the initial proposal. The building inspector will also review the property for code 

violations associated with the project area (i.e. in first floor space for a tenant improvement grant, or on the 

exterior of the building for a façade grant). Any identified violations must be corrected prior to project 

approval. Only after a project is inspected and approved will grant funds will be released to the applicant. 

Facade Improvement - Program Guidelines: 

• Planned improvement must be compatible with historic zoning overlay district standards where applicable. 

Improvements should make an effort to preserve or restore the historic character of the building. 

• Eligible projects include: 

o Window and door repairs/replacement 

o Brick tuck pointing or masonry repair 

o Storefront rehabilitation 

o Signage, shutters or awnings 

o Painting or siding, brick cleaning 

o Correction of exterior code violations 

o Exterior repairs (on façade only) 

o Energy efficiency upgrades 

• Non-eligible costs include non-façade related improvements such as roof repair, rear or side wall 

improvements (unless a corner property), landscaping, paving or other property related improvements not 

associated with the façade of the building. 



 

HTTPS://WATERLOOWI.SHAREPOINT.COM/SITES/fileshares/data/common/agendas_ minutes/2023/cda-3rd tuesday/2023-01-17/facadetenantpackage.docx Page 4 of 7  
1/18/2023 1:25 PM 

Commercial Interior Build-Out - Program Guidelines: 

• Eligible improvements include the following activities, as applies to the commercial storefront portion of 

the property. 

o Hazardous materials abatement, such as asbestos removal 

o Demolition and shell reconstruction 

o Plumbing, mechanical, electrical, cabling and HVAC improvements 

o New restaurant equipment (i.e. hoods, vents, etc.) 

o Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Compliance 

o Storefront Improvements 

o Historic restoration of interior features 

• Non-eligible costs include non-permanent fixtures such as security systems, merchandise or display items, 

furniture or interior décor items. Costs associated with improvements to upper floors or basements are 

not eligible. 

How to apply: 

• Applicant must submit a complete application packet by the deadline. A complete application includes 

the following: 

o Application form, 

o Planned project renderings (including colors and materials), 

o Photos of the existing façade/space which demonstrate the need for improvements, 

o Project cost estimate by a qualified, licensed contractor, 

o Applications for tenant improvement upgrades must also include signed lease agreement, and if 

application is submitted by tenant, a written letter of permission from the property owner 

approving the project. 

• Complete applications will be considered and evaluated according to a set of weighted criteria. Based on 

available funding, grants will be awarded to qualified projects based on anticipated project impact. 

• Applicants will be notified of grant awards in writing. The City reserves the right to offer a lesser dollar 

amount than requested if the amount of eligible projects exceeds allocated funding. Grant offers may also be 

made contingent on adjustments to proposed plan of work to better meet City goals and objectives. 

Applicants must accept or reject the grant funds in writing within 30 days of award. 

• Projects must obtain all required building permits and follow all City, State and Federal regulations in regard to 

construction activities. 

• Applicant must submit receipts upon completion of work, and work must be reviewed to ensure project reflects 

application materials. Following project approval, building inspection (if required) and submission of all 

applicable receipts, grant funds will be released to applicant. 

• Participant Applicant shall display a sign (provided by the City) indicating participation in the program, either 

on the exterior or in the front window of the property during improvements and signage to remain for a 30-
day period following project completion. 

 

 

 

 



 

HTTPS://WATERLOOWI.SHAREPOINT.COM/SITES/fileshares/data/common/agendas_ minutes/2023/cda-3rd tuesday/2023-01-17/facadetenantpackage.docx Page 5 of 7  
1/18/2023 1:25 PM 

APPLICATION 

Downtown Facade & Commercial Interior Build-Out Grant Programs 

Prior to submitting this application, please review the complete program guidelines regarding eligible projects and grant amounts. 

Contact the City of Waterloo at 920-478-3025 with questions or for additional clarification prior to submitting a project application. 

Incomplete applications will not be considered for funding. Completed applications should be submitted to City of Waterloo, 136 N 

Monroe St, Waterloo, WI 53595  

 

Date: _______________  

Applicant Name: ______________________  

Applicant is: (circle one): Property Owner       Business Tenant 

Applicant mailing address: ___________________________________________  

Daytime Phone: ______________________  

Email Address: _______________________  

Address of property for proposed improvement: ___________________________  

Property owner (if different than applicant): ________________________________  

Anticipated total project cost: __________________________  

Grant request amount: _______________________________  

Describe project: (attach an additional sheet if necessary) 

Start date: 

 

 

 

Thank you for submitting your project for consideration. Don't forget to attach tThe following to this application before 

submitting are to be included with the application. 

• Photos of existing building/space to be improved. 

• Project renderings, including materials and colors to be used  

• Project estimates provided by qualified, licensed contractor 

• Lease document (for tenant improvement projects) 

• Project approval from landlord (if applicant is a business) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

HTTPS://WATERLOOWI.SHAREPOINT.COM/SITES/fileshares/data/common/agendas_ minutes/2023/cda-3rd tuesday/2023-01-17/facadetenantpackage.docx Page 6 of 7  
1/18/2023 1:25 PM 

Downtown Facade & Commercial Interior Build-Out Grant Programs 

GRANT ACCEPTANCE FORM 
 

KEEP TOP PORTION FOR YOUR RECORDS -- RETURN BOTTOM PORTION TO: 
CITY OF WATERLOO FAÇADE/TENANT IMPROVEMENT GRANT 
136 NORTH MONROE STREET, WATERLOO, WI  53594-1198 

920-478-3025 
PROGRAM GUIDELINES AND REQUIREMENTS 

Guidelines and requirements must be met by all applicants.  Failure to do so may result in forfeiture of grant money. 

● Applicant must accept or reject the grant funds within 30 days of award.  Failure to reply will result in a loss of the 

grant award. 

● Projects must obtain all required building permits and follow all City, State and Federal regulations in regard to 

construction activities. 

● Applicant must be current on all mortgage, tax and utility payments. Tenants must be current in lease payments to the 

property owner.    

● Eligible project costs include both hard costs (construction) as well as soft costs (design and engineering).  However, 

tThe majority of total project cost should be hard costs. 

● Work must be completed according to the approved plan within 120 days of approval of the grant unless a specific 

exemption is granted.  Any changes to the work plan as documented in the application must be approved by the City in 

advance.   

● Applicant must execute all items listed on the checklist provided with the award notice. 

● Applicant agrees that final work will be inspected to ensure that the results are comparable to the initial proposal.  

The building inspector will also review the property for code violations associated with the project area.  Applicant 

agrees to correct identified building code violations prior to the release of grant funds. 

● Participant Applicant shall display a sign (provided by the City) indicating participation in the program, either on the 

exterior or in the front window of the property during improvements and for a 30-day period following project 

completion. 

►►►►►►► Clip Here & Mail Or Deliver To Clerk/Treasurer’s Office ◄◄◄◄◄◄◄ 

Downtown Facade & Commercial Interior Build-Out Grant Programs (return slip) 

I have read the program guidelines and requirements and agree to the terms and conditions as stated. 

Printed Name: ___________________________________________ 

Signed:  ________________________________________________ 

Dated: _________________________ 

Project ID(s) _____________________________________________ 

Downtown Facade & Commercial Interior Build-Out Grant Programs 

APPLICANT CHECK LIST 



 

HTTPS://WATERLOOWI.SHAREPOINT.COM/SITES/fileshares/data/common/agendas_ minutes/2023/cda-3rd tuesday/2023-01-17/facadetenantpackage.docx Page 7 of 7  
1/18/2023 1:25 PM 

 
Submit project information to: 

CITY OF WATERLOO  
FAÇADE/TENANT IMPROVEMENT GRANT 

136 NORTH MONROE STREET 
WATERLOO, WI  53594-1198 

920-478-3025 

 

□  1. Grant award notice received/reviewed.  Project completion deadline is:  ___________________. 

 

□  2. Complete and return grant acceptance form. 
 

□  3. Real estate and/or personal property taxes confirmed as not being delinquent. 

 

□  4.  All necessary permits are applied for and received through the City of Waterloo Building  
Inspection office.  Painting, repairs and maintenance do not require permits.  Call 608-576-6371 to  
determine if your project requires a permit. 

 

□  5.  Prominently display the 11 x 17 inch project poster. 
 

□  6. Upon completion of work and after final payment to all project contractors is completed, 
all paid-in-full invoices from contractors who completed grant eligible work are submitted.  The  
payee must document that payment has been received in full.    
 

□  7. Upon completion of work, all direct purchase receipts pertaining to completed work are submitted. 

 

□  8. Before and after pictures submitted. 
 

□  9. Final walk through with municipal staff scheduled (call 920-478-3025). 
 

□  10. The grant award will be mailed after the project is completed and all documentation is 
accounted for. 

 



         
 

                      

                           136 North Monroe Street, Waterloo. Wisconsin 53594-1198 

                                                      Phone (920) 478-3025 

                                                      Fax (920) 478-2021 
 

    
 

COMPLIANCE ASSURANCE PLAN 
City of Waterloo 

 

Purpose:  This policy will establish standard guidelines that will lead to compliance with the 
City of Waterloo Solid Waste Ordinance chapter 317 articles I and II. 
 
The City of Waterloo is responsible for enforcing the City recycling ordinance.  City staff and 
personnel shall follow the guidelines identified in this Compliance Assurance Plan in 
response to issues associated with recycling and solid waste.  This plan is intended to meet 

the requirements of Section NR544.04(9g) of the Wisconsin Administrative Code as well as 
the City ordinances related to recycling. 
 

Types of Compliance Issues – Recycling Program 
1. PROBLEM: Trash found with recyclables     
 -  Hauler leaves tag but picks up recyclables 
 -  Hauler notifies Director of Public Works 
 -  Educational materials sent 
 -  Second offense – hauler leaves material behind  
 
2. PROBLEM: Recyclable materials found in trash 
 -  Hauler leaves tag 
 -  Hauler notifies Director of Public Works 
 -  Letter sent with educational materials 
 -  Onsite follow up by City staff 
 -  If no compliance – citation is issued 
 
3. PROBLEM: Property found to have no recycling option in place        
 -  Letter and educational materials sent to both property owner and tenant(s) 
 -  Given one month to comply 
 -  Onsite follow up by City staff 
 -  If no compliance – citation issued to owner 
 
4. PROBLEM: Hauler is mixing recyclables with trash        
 -  Director of Public Works notified 
 -  Inspection of collection methods and vehicle 
 -  Hauler operations manager notified immediately and follow up in writing 
 -  DNR notified 
 -  Follow-up random inspections of route collections   
 -  If no compliance – citation issued to owner 
 









         
 

                      

                           136 North Monroe Street, Waterloo. Wisconsin 53594-1198 

                                                      Phone (920) 478-3025 

                                                      Fax (920) 478-2021 
 

    
 

COMPLIANCE ASSURANCE PLAN 
City of Waterloo 

 

Purpose:  This policy will establish standard guidelines that will lead to compliance with the 
City of Waterloo Solid Waste Ordinance chapter 317 articles I and II. 
 
The City of Waterloo is responsible for enforcing the City recycling ordinance.  City staff and 
personnel shall follow the guidelines identified in this Compliance Assurance Plan in 
response to issues associated with recycling and solid waste.  This plan is intended to meet 

the requirements of Section NR544.04(9g) of the Wisconsin Administrative Code as well as 
the City ordinances related to recycling. 
 

Types of Compliance Issues – Recycling Program 
1. PROBLEM: Trash found with recyclables     
 -  Hauler leaves tag but picks up recyclables 
 -  Hauler notifies Director of Public Works 
 -  Educational materials sent 
 -  Second offense – hauler leaves material behind  
 
2. PROBLEM: Recyclable materials found in trash 
 -  Hauler leaves tag 
 -  Hauler notifies Director of Public Works 
 -  Letter sent with educational materials 
 -  Onsite follow up by City staff 
 -  If no compliance – citation is issued 
 
3. PROBLEM: Property found to have no recycling option in place        
 -  Letter and educational materials sent to both property owner and tenant(s) 
 -  Given one month to comply 
 -  Onsite follow up by City staff 
 -  If no compliance – citation issued to owner 
 
4. PROBLEM: Hauler is mixing recyclables with trash        
 -  Director of Public Works notified 
 -  Inspection of collection methods and vehicle 
 -  Hauler operations manager notified immediately and follow up in writing 
 -  DNR notified 
 -  Follow-up random inspections of route collections   
 -  If no compliance – citation issued to owner 
 



 

136 NORTH MONROE STREET, WATERLOO, WISCONSIN 53594-1198 
Phone: (920) 478-3025 
Fax: (920) 478-2021 
E-Mail: cityhall@waterloowi.us 
Website: www.waterloowi.us  

 

RESOLUTION #2023-02 
Council Confirmation Of Jeanne Ritter 

As Clerk/Deputy Treasurer 

WHEREAS, Clerk/Deputy Treasurer Position has been filled, and. 

WHEREAS, Mayor Quimby has appointed Jeanne Ritter as Clerk /Deputy Treasurer. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Waterloo Common Council confirms the 
Mayoral appointment of Jeanne Ritter as Clerk/Deputy Treasurer. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of January 2023. 

CITY OF WATERLOO 

Signed: 
Jenifer Quimby, Mayor 

Attest: 

Lana Nelson, Treasurer/Deputy Clerk 

https://waterloowi.sharepoint.com/sites/Fileshares/data/Common/RESOLUTIONS/2023 RESOLUTIONS/PROPOSED/20123-02Appointing Jeanne Ritter Clerk-Deputy 
Treasurer/#2023-02 Appointing Jeanne Ritter ClerkDeputy Treasurer.doc 

mailto:cityhall@waterloowi.us
http://www.waterloowi.us/
https://waterloowi.sharepoint.com/sites/Fileshares/data/Common/RESOLUTIONS/2023

	Insert from: "W&L Bills & Report of Cash Dec 22.pdf"
	Sheet1


